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Thomas Dale intended to put the four-year old Virginia coloay on a
firm basis through strict disciplinary control of the colonists and the
establishment of a healthfer more defensible chief town. The latter is
evident in the choice of Henrico's site and the form that the town's con-
struction took. The Privy Council had ordered the replacement of James-
town with another town, named '"Henrico' in honor of the king's oldest son.
According to William Stith's account, however, it was left to Dale to choose
the most advantageous location. After exploration of the "Nansamond" River
and the James to the falls, he "at length pitched upon a place for his new
town, Y, «::1ly iwvironcd by che

main River." The situation of the site has been altered=

. However, the site retains its
commanding position atop a bluff that drops off sharply on all but one side,
the latter providing casily controlled access to the town. The choice of
location shows much more foresight than was apparent in the choice of James-
town Island.

The town that Dale constructed in (611 was strongly defended by a
palisade with blockhouses at the cornmers. John Smith described the town in
his History:

It hath three streets of well framed houses, a handsome church, and
the foundations of a better laid, to bee built of bricke, besides
Sctore-houses, Watch-houses, and such like: Upon the verge of the
River there are five houses, wherein live the honester sort of
peopie, as Farmers in England, and they keepe continuall centinell
for the towns securitie.

On the maintand to the north, a palisade nearly two miles in length connecteq
the bends o. the river to enclose land for cultivation. Dale dug a ditch
across the neck in the manner he had observed in Holland, thus the name
“Dutch Gap." On the south mainland was built a ''guest house for sick
people' which has been called the first hospital built in English America,
and nearby was the glebe and parsonage of Reverend Alexander Whitaker. The
site of the college has not been determined and there is no definite infor-
mation regarding the actual construction of buildings.

Today the town site is completely forested, with no structures
visible above ground. The early college and church are commemorated by a
stone obelisk erected in 1910 by the Colonial Dames and a cross placed there
in 1911 by the Episcopal Diocese of Virginia. Some part of the town may
have peen lost in the erosion of the northerm bluff by the river, but most |
of the site 1s probably undisturbed. !
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIPICANCE

The Virginia Company planned to relocate Virginia's chief city
from Jamestown to a healthier and more easily defended location further up
the James River. In accordance witl: these plans, the town of Henrico was
built in 1611 by 350 workmen under the direction of Thomas Dale. Although
Henrico continuce as a significant settlement for the duration of the
Company period oi Virginia history (l€07-24), the seat oi government remaine
at Jamestown. The capitol was removed to Williamsburg at the end of the
century, long after Henrico had been abandoned.

The arrival of Sir Thomas Gates as Governor allowed Dale to !
establish the town through a major building project that began in September,
1611. Contemporary intexest in the new outpost was expressed by the Spanis
spy,; Don Diego de Molina, who wrote in 1613 to the Spanish ambassador in
London: "another twenty leagues further up is another colony strongly located-
to which they will all betake themselves if the occasion arises, because on
this they place their hopes....”” Don Diego set the population of Henrico
at a hundred inhabitants, including women, children, and agricultural
i laborers. Six years later the town was represented in the first assembly
by Thomas Dowse and Jom Polentine. {
! Henrico was to be the site of the "university and College" calle#
for in the 1618 charter. The schools seem to have been intended to provide!
instruction to the sons of infidels as well as white settlers. Ten
thousand acres adjoining Henrico were supplied as endowment, and a mnational 1

fund drive was sponsored in England by the Church and King. Much of the
fifteen thousand pounds derived from the fund was invested as endowment,

and it appears that some buildings were actually constructed. Workers were
sent from England in 1619 and 1620 to carry out the constructiom.

The failure of the college project and the Henrico settlement
has been blamed on the massacre of 1622. There is some support for this
theory in contemporary accounts, but it appears, on balance, that the colleg
and town struggled on for several years thereafter. The revocation of the
\Company charter in 1624 removed the major source of interest in both pro-
jects, and neither would have survived much beyond that date,

The general lack of development of the town site over the past
three-and-one-half centuries suggest important archaeological potential.
Should the below-ground remains be intact, they would provide rare physicail
evidence of how the settlers lived during the earliest period of the colony.
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